ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COMM TTEE
April 5, 2012
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 351

" An Act est abl i shi ng pr ocedur es relating to i ssuance,
suspension, or revocation of certification of police officers by
the police standards council; making certain court service
officers subject to certification by the police standards
council; making confidential certain information that personally
identifies a police officer; relating to requesting or requiring
police officers to subnmt to |lie detector tests; repealing a

provi sion exenpting certain police officers from a prohibition
against requiring certain enployees to submt to lie detector
tests; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG S):  ALASKA PUBLI C OFFI CES COW SSI ON

- HEARD
CS FOR SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 17( STA)
Cel ebrating the 100th anniversary of the Grl Scouts of the
United States of Anmerica and proclaimng 2012 as the Year of the
Grl.

- HEARD & HELD

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO 53(FIN)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 5, 2012



“"An Act reestablishing the Al aska Comm ssion on the Status of
Wnen; and relating to the purpose and powers of the Al aska
Human Rel ati ons Comm ssion. "

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 351

SHORT TITLE: POLI CE OFFI CER PROTECTI ONS/ CERTI FI CATI ON
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

02/ 22/ 12 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 12 (H) STA, JUD

04/ 03/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 03/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 03/ 12 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 05/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SCR 17
SHORT TITLE. G RL SCOUTS 100TH ANNI VERSARY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 17/ 12 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 17/ 12 (S) STA

02/ 02/ 12 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 02/ 12 (S) Moved CSSCR 17(STA) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 02/ 12 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 03/ 12 (S) STA RPT CS 5DP SAME TI TLE

02/ 03/ 12 (S) DP:  WELECHOMSKI, KOOKESH,  PASKVAN,
MEYER, G ESSEL

02/ 17/ 12 (S) BEFORE THE SENATE ON FI NAL PASSAGE

02/ 17/ 12 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 17/ 12 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSCR 17( STA)

02/ 20/ 12 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 20/ 12 (H STA

04/ 05/ 12 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 53
SHORT TI TLE. COWM SSI ON ON THE STATUS OF WOVEN
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) STA, FIN

03/ 24/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 24/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 24/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 5, 2012



03/ 29/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 29/ 11 (S) Moved SB 53 Qut of Committee

03/ 29/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 30/ 11 (S) STA RPT 3DP 1DNP 1NR

03/ 30/ 11 (S) DP: W ELECHOWBKI , KOOKESH, PASKVAN

03/ 30/ 11 (S) DNP: G ESSEL

03/ 30/ 11 (S) NR. MEYER

01/ 20/ 12 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

01/ 20/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 20/ 12 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 02/ 12 (S) FIN AT 9:00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

02/ 02/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 53(FIN) Qut of Committee

02/ 02/ 12 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 03/ 12 (S) FIN RPT CS 5DP 2NR SAME TI TLE

02/ 03/ 12 (S) DP:  HOFFMAN, THOMAS, EGAN, MCGU RE,
ELLIS

02/ 03/ 12 (S) NR. STEDMAN, OLSON

02/ 22/ 12 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 22/ 12 (S) VERSI ON: CSSB 53( FI N)

02/ 24/ 12 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 24/ 12 (H) STA, FIN

04/ 03/ 12 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 03/ 12 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 03/ 12 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 05/ 12 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced HB 351.

JULI E LUCKY, Staff

Representati ve M ke Hawker

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Reviewed the <changes in the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) to HB 351, Version 27-LS1352\M Wayne,
4/ 4/ 12, on behal f of Representative Hawker, sponsor.

RI CHARD BURTON

No address provided

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Rel ated sone history regarding the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council during the hearing on HB 351.

SHELDON SCHM TT, Police Chi ef

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 5, 2012



Sitka Police Departnment;

Chair

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Council (APSC)

Sitka, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of APSC in opposition
to HB 351.

JAKE METCALFE, Executive Director

Public Safety Enployees Association, Inc./Anerican Federation of
State, County, Minicipal Enployees (PSEA/ AFSCVE) Local 803

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 351.

VANCE SANDERS, Appoi ntee

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Public
O fices Conmm ssion.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced SCR 17.

KATYA WASSI LLIE, Intern

Senat or Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SCR 17 on behalf of Senator
Davi s, sponsor.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced SB 53.

CELESTE HODGE, Staff

Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 53 on behalf of Senator Davis,
sponsor.

ARLI SS STURGULEWBK

Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SB 53.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 5, 2012



BARBARA BELKNAP

Vi si on 2020

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SB 53.

CAREN ROBI NSON, Lobbyi st

Al aska Wnen's Lobby (AW)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 53.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:06: 59 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:06 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton
P. WIlson, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representati ves Johansen and Guenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 351- POLI CE OFFI CER PROTECTI ONS/ CERTI FI CATI ON

8:07:52 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 351, "An Act establishing procedures relating to
i ssuance, suspension, or revocation of certification of police

officers by the police standards council; making certain court
service officers subject to certification by the ©police
standards council; making confidential certain information that

personally identifies a police officer; relating to requesting
or requiring police officers to submt to lie detector tests
repealing a provision exenpting certain police officers from a
prohi bition against requiring certain enployees to submt to lie
detector tests; and providing for an effective date."

8:08: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor, introduced HB 351. He explained that his office is
working on a committee substitute for HB 351 that would be
supported by people on both sides of the issue, and while that
version is not yet ready, there is a conmttee substitute for
the conmttee's consideration that he described as "sufficiently
mature." He requested that the commttee not nove out HB 351
t oday.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 5, 2012



8:10: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) to HB 351, Version 27-LS1352\M Wayne, 4/4/12,
as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
8:10:40 AM

JULIE LUCKY, Staff, Representative M ke Hawker, Alaska State
Legislature, reviewed the changes in Version M She said
because no one stated an objection to the use of suspension, it
remains in the bill. The primary concern expressed at the |ast
hearing, she reviewed, was that the Al aska Police Standards
Council's (APSC s) hands not be tied to a decision made by a
hearing officer or to a decision made by a court of arbitration
when the council judges that the officer in question should be
di sciplined for objectionable behavior. To address that
concern, she said, Section 1 now would allow the council to
revoke the certificate of a police officer or refuse to issue a
certificate to an applicant followng filing of an accusation
and delivering notice of it. She said Version M renoves the
requirenent that the council's refusal or revocation nust be
consistent wth the decision of the hearing officer, because

that requirenent is limting to the council. She offered her
understanding that wunder the current Admnistrative Procedure
Act (APA), if the council does deviate from the decision of a

hearing officer, it nust support its reason in writing.
8:13:14 AM

M5. LUCKY said no changes were made in Section 2, which requires
the council to prove the conduct of the accused by clear and

convi nci ng evidence. She acknow edged that this issue is a
poi nt of contention, and that some would want the proof to be a
preponder ance of evidence. She said that is a policy call for
the commttee to nake. Ms. Lucky said Section 3 prohibits the

council from taking action on ["a proceeding to revoke, suspend,
or refuse to issue a certificate to a police officer”] that is
under dispute or has been taken up by a court; however, Version
M woul d add certain circunstances [paragraphs 1-7, on page 2,
line 25, through page 3, line 21], under which the council would
coul d make exceptions to that prohibition.

8:16:47 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 5, 2012



M5. LUCKY, in response to Representative P. WIson, stated that
the overall intent of Section 3 is to separate enploynent
actions taken through <collective bargaining from revocation
actions taken when an officer fails to neet the standards set by
t he council .

8:20:43 AM

M5. LUCKY, in response to Representative Seaton, said, "These
seven exceptions would be the exceptions to considering evidence
that has already been decided through another process or is
currently in dispute in another process."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Lucky to <confirm that AS
18.65.244 relates only to actions following court cases or
grievance procedures.

M5. LUCKY said Representative Seaton's summation is correct.
8.23:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON remarked that sonetines appeals take a
long time, and she ventured that "this" would allow [the officer
in question] to continue making appeals and "be able to do what
he wants."

M5. LUCKY indicated that that is correct, except in the case of
the previously nentioned seven exceptions.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON proffered that an officer being
i nvestigated for sexual msconduct, as long as it did not occur
while on duty, would be allowed to keep [working] wuntil the
appeal process was conpl et ed.

M5. LUCKY said that is how she interprets [Section 3], which was
reworked in response to concerns expressed by the conmttee at
its last hearing of HB 351.

8:25: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if Version M would give [the
counci | ] subpoena power , anot her avenue for obt ai ni ng
i nformati on.

M5. LUCKY said that is not addressed in Version M which was

witten by a bill drafter, and she said she would |like to get
nmore information from the bill drafter. She said, "It would

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 5, 2012



only apply to court cases [and] arbitration where the
term nation had been reversed."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed to the phrase, "or is in dispute",
on page 2, line 14, and said, "It |ooks like they could not use
any of that information to do it."

M5. LUCKY responded, "That is correct, other than m sconduct
that is enunerated in itens 1-7; that's mnmy understandi ng."”

8:28:10 AM

M5. LUCKY noted that the original bill version adds court
services officers to the definition of "police officer"” in
Section 4, and Version M offers no further changes. She

indicated that there is a trend toward adding court services
officers already in the making, and the sponsor is considering
an anendnment to delay the effective date of Section 4 "if that's
happeni ng anyway." |In response to the chair, she confirned that
the anmendnment is included in the commttee packet. Ms. Lucky
said Sections 5-6 address the administration of a lie detector
test. She related that in response to conmttee discussion at
the last hearing, the sponsor has clarified, [with the addition
of paragraph (3) in Version M, his intent "that this apply to

current enployees and not bar the use of lie detector tests
during the application process." She stated that no changes
were made to Section 7, which addresses the confidentiality of
personal information held by the enployer and includes the
following exceptions of that which could be released for
i nspection, provided the officer was legally arrested: a

phot ograph of the officer, information included in a 9-1-1 call,
a police or investigative report, a conplaint nade to a |aw
enf orcenment agency, and a w tness statenent. She said the only
objection heard regarding Section 7 is regarding the rel ease of
phot os. She indicated that concern has been expressed that
photos would have to be taken down in all the police stations.
She said that is not the intent of the sponsor. She said the
sponsor envi sions the waiver process to include a form signed at
the beginning of the hiring process regarding the release of
phot ogr aphs.

8:31:47 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, regarding the aforenentioned Section 3,
paragraph 7, questioned "who would notify the police officer of

those circunstances.” He said he is trying to get clarification
on the "large section related to refusal to answer."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 5, 2012



M5. LUCKY suggested soneone else may be better able to explain
that portion of Version M

8:33:23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON directed attention to Section 6, on
page 4, and noted that Version Mtakes away the "or" on line 25
between the first two reasons that ["A public enployer may not
di scharge, threaten, or otherwise discrimnate against an
enpl oyee regar di ng t he enpl oyee' s conpensati on, termns,
conditions, location, or privileges of enploynent"]; therefore,
bot h reasons woul d have to apply together.

MS. LUCKY responded that that is not the intent of the sponsor.
She offered her wunderstanding that by noving the "or" from
between the first two paragraphs to between the second and newy
added third paragraph [on line 28], the "or" would apply to al

t hr ee paragraphs.

8:35: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, regarding Section 1, asked about the
pur pose of a suspension. He said he is troubled by changing the
council to one that upholds mninmum requirements to a counci
that is disciplinary and i ssues suspensions.

M5. LUCKY responded that one circunstance in which suspension
may be a better choice is when an officer is seeking treatnent
for chemcal or alcohol addiction and could be sent to a
recovery program while under suspension. She suggested that it
may be hel pful to be able to suspend soneone so that he/she does
not have to go through the process of being recertified.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wants the people on both sides of
the issue to address it.

8:39:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG directed attention to a |egal
menmorandum in the commttee packet from the Al aska GCvi
Li berties Union (ACLU), and offered his understanding that under
HB 351, the council wll be able to suspend the certificate of
an officer before filing an accusation or a statenment of issues.
He asked if it is the intent of the sponsor that the counci
should be required to provide any statenment of reasons to the
of ficer.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 5, 2012



M5. LUCKY answered that the sponsor is responding to a concern
regardi ng voluntary relinquishnment of a I|icense. She expl ai ned
that it is the sponsor's intent to allow an inmedi ate suspensi on
when it perceives "sonething is going wong," so that there is
time to go through the process without the first step being
decertification or revocation. She reiterated the sponsor's
intent to make further inprovenents to the proposed |egislation.

M5. LUCKY, in response to Representative Guenberg, said the
issue of hearings is covered under AS 44.62.330-630, which is
the Admi nistrative Procedure Act.

8:43: 26 AM

M5. LUCKY, in response to Representative Petersen, requested
that the aforenentioned anendnent in the committee packet be
ignored for the tine being.

8:44:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is particularly interested in
| ooking at the contours of what rights a person in the position
of an accused police officer has under due process. He opi ned
that HB 351 has nmany constitutional and policy issues to
consi der.

8:46: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ~ JOHANSEN, regarding Representative Seaton's
mention of suspensions, noted that AS 18.65.240 includes
standards related to education and the physical and nental nake-
up of an officer. He said these are issues that can be
addressed and corrected. He said he would like the council to
have the flexibility [to suspend an officer] and for the issue
of suspension to not be restricted to the idea of immorality or

| yi ng.
8:48: 03 AM

M5. LUCKY echoed Representative Johansen's remark regarding
allowing the council to use suspension as a tool, and enphasized
that the proposed legislation would not bind the council to
havi ng to suspend soneone.

8:48: 31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 5, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned past |egislation addressing
the renoval of a University of Al aska regent. He renmarked that
sonmeone could be under suspension and be wunder a tenporary
disability, and that person should be able to seek a hearing and
rei nstatenment during the process.

M5. LUCKY [nodded] in response to the chair asking her if she
under st ands the concern.

8:49:40 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON posited that the committee needs to
narrow down the issue related to personal identification

8:50:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his objection to the previously
stated notion to adopt the proposed committee substitute (CS) to
HB 351, Version 27-LS1352\M Wayne, 4/4/12, as a work draft.
There being no further objection, Version M was before the
comittee.

8:51: 36 AM

RI CHARD BURTON testified that although he is a nenber of the
Al aska Police Standards Council, he was not testifying in an
official capacity, but was there to inpart sonme history
regarding the council and its standards. He related his

involvenent in drafting the |anguage that becane the origina
police standards |aw, through Senate Bill 1, in 1971. He said
he served as the conm ssioner of the Departnment of Public Safety
during Governor Jay Hammond's term of office and Governor Walter
Hickel's last term of office, and he can offer insight from his

time on the council, which currently totals 14 years. He said
before statehood there were no police standards and "Al aska was
a pretty wild and wooly place.” He offered exanples. He opined

that since statehood, the state has done a good job in creating
state police, highway patrol, and |ocal |aw enforcenent.

8:54:39 AM

MR. BURTON said when HB 351 was introduced he was shocked,
because he has never seen any officer treated so badly as to

warrant fixing a system that is not broken. He offered to
answer questions. He observed that many issues contained in the
bill belong in the collective bargaining arena. In response to

Representative Keller, he offered further details regarding the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 5, 2012



history of law enforcenent in the territory of Alaska and into
early statehood. He said there are two definitions in |aw a
police officer, which is a person with a badge on the street,
and a peace officer, which could be a deputy marshal or Federa
Bureau of Investigation (FBI) agent, for exanple. He said
because peace officers do not use patrol cars, answer calls, or
wite tickets, he does not see that they need the sane |evel of
traini ng.

8:58:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked M. Burton to address the possible
fiscal inpact under HB 351 that may result from training the
addi ti onal people.

MR. BURTON offered his understanding that there would be an
additional 400 hours of training, some of it physical, and he
ventured that some court services officers would not be capable
of conpleting such training. He indicated that the court
services officers wuld lose the skills they acquired in that
training if those skills were not utilized and kept current.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noted that HB 351 would not be heard by
t he House Fi nance Committee. He stated concern about the fiscal

i mpact .

CHAIR LYNN said the conmmttee needs to delve into that issue.

MR. BURTON said the training would probably occur over severa
years and cost "several hundreds of thousands of dollars.”

9:02:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked M. Burton what he thinks about
giving the ability to suspend to the council.

MR. BURTON said he is not certain how it would be useful. He
said substance abuse problenms currently are being handled
adm ni stratively through managenent. He indicated that a police

chief should be able to take care of these problens on his/her
own, rather than foisting themoff on the council.

9:03: 31 AM
MR. BURTQN, in response to Representative Keller, said he cannot

recall an instance where an officer whose certification was
revoked was subsequently rehired. He said what bothers himthe

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 5, 2012



nost in the proposed legislation is the <change from
preponderance of evidence to clear and convincing evidence. He
opined that it is not right to single out the council to have to
reach a higher standard of proof.

9: 05: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN questioned whether the idea behind
having court services officers increase their training may be
because of increased threats to court personnel.

MR. BURTON responded, "[If] sonebody wants to do sonething,
they're going to do it, and having a degree or high |evel of
education's not going to stop it." He said currently there are
good peopl e who are dedicated to their jobs providing security.

9: 06: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, regarding the provision in HB 351 that
woul d not allow the council to consider evidence closely rel ated
to disciplinary action under certain circunstances, asked M.
Burton if the council has independent authority to generate
subpoena evi dence.

MR. BURTON offered his understanding that the council has used
subpoenas to get records.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the aforenentioned seven
exceptions and asked M. Burton if he has concerns about not
being able to gather that information.

MR. BURTON rel ated that he received Version M just this norning,

but said, "It's not real clear how binding sonme of the previous
action would actually be to prohibit the council from performng
what is statutorily their responsibility.” He said he does not

know i f this | anguage has to do with a | oophole, and he does not
want to offer further opinion before hearing what the council's
attorney has to say.

9:10:16 AM

CHAI R LYNN handed the gavel to Vice Chair Keller.

9:10:42 AM

SHELDON SCHM TT, Police Chief, Sitka Police Departnent; Chair,
Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC), testified on behalf of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 5, 2012



APSC in opposition to HB 351. He explained that he thinks the
proposed |egislation would erode the standards to which the
council currently holds police officers. He opined that the
standards are needed now nore than ever, and he said he thinks
the proposed |egislation would erode the authority of APSC and
underm ne the public trust in A aska's |aw enforcenent.

9:12:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Schmtt if the use of
suspensi ons woul d change the m ssion of the council.

MR SCHM TT answered that it may. He said there are other
states that have suspension as part of their purview, and he
said he can envision suspension being a tool for the council to
use in specific cases. However, he expressed concern over
turning the council into a disciplinary agency rather than just
a regul atory agency.

9:14: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if the authority to suspend m ght
gi ve due process nore time to take pl ace.

MR. SCHM TT said he thinks that is a persuasive argunent. He
said nost departnents put the police officer on administrative
| eave - paid or unpaid - in order for that due process to take
pl ace, which is, in effect, a suspension.

9:15: 46 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked M. Schmitt if he thinks that
under HB 351, a police officer could use the fact that he/she
could be suspended as an excuse to "take a chance a little bit
nore than normal ."

MR. SCHM TT said he thinks Representative P. WIlson is getting
to the heart of the mtter and the reason that he 1is
unconfortable with HB 351 in general. He said he has |earned as
a lieutenant that the departnments with the nost instances of bad
behavior are wusually the departnments in which nmanagenent has
failed to take disciplinary action. He said taking firm
disciplinary action is basic to the health of any organization
He agreed that the know edge that a person could get by wth
just a suspension nmay pronote bad behavi or.

9:17: 43 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 5, 2012



The conmttee took a brief at-ease.
9:18: 37 AM

JAKE WMETCALFE, Executive Director, Public Safety Enployees
Associ ati on, I nc./ Anerican Federati on of State, Count vy,
Muni ci pal Enpl oyees (PSEA/ AFSCME) Local 803, stated that under
351, court service officers, which are not currently certified,
woul d be certified. He described court services officers as:
having jurisdiction within the courts, wearing a badge, carrying
a gun, wearing a uniform transporting prisoners between court
houses in vehicles and on airplanes, and investigating crines
that "happen on the court house,"” serving warrants, and serving
process. He related an incident in January when a person in
custody tried to make a run for the door during a court hearing
and the court services officer caught the man, arrested him and
put him into custody. He said PSEA thinks that court services
officers do the type of duties that police officers do. M.
Metcal fe pointed out that under statute, Village Public Safety
Oficers (VPSGs) in rural conmunities are certified; they do
[imted investigations of msdeneanor crinmes, but they don't

carry weapons. He said PSEA thinks that certifying court
services officers would address a liability problem in the
state. He said PSEA's nenbers who are court services officers
want to be certified. M. Mtcalfe said there are three basic
certification |evels: basic, internediate, and advanced. He
said PSEA believes that "a certification under those areas is
very possible and needed for court services officers.” He
conpared court services officers to airport police and
university police. He said PSEA sees [certification] as

sonething that would inprove policing and be good for the court
system as well as sonething that is |ong overdue.

9:22: 25 AM

MR. METCALF addressed the issue of suspension, which he stated
PSEA thinks of as a tool. He said Representative Johansen hit
the nail on the head with his coments about suspension. He

said suspension would not be nmandatory, but would be avail able
to address enotional issues and could be used, for exanple, in
response to sonme Class A msdeneanors instead of revoking the
certification of an otherwi se good police officer. He said PSEA
supports the ability of APSC to certify and revoke
certifications, but thinks the tinme has conme to "nodernize that"
ina fair manner. He urged the committee to pass Version M

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 5, 2012



9:24:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked M. Metcalf if he believes the
training for the court officers would incur cost to the state.

MR. METCALF responded that any kind of training would cost
noney; however, he said the court services officers already get
training, so it would depend on how nuch extra training they
woul d be given. He nmentioned the police acadeny in Sitka,
Al aska, and said the departnment would be the best judge of who
woul d need to be sent there.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN questioned whether court services
officers would expect an increase in pay after conpleting
addi ti onal training.

MR. METCALF said that is an issue he thinks will not be brought
forth, because the court services officers have a classification
that would not change; they would not be doing the same duties
as police officers. In response to a followup question from
Representati ve Johansen, he said it is not the intent of PSEA to
respond to the increased training requirenments under HB 351 by
asking for the classification level of court services officers
to be raised.

9:28:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said she would like to know the current
nunber of hours of training undergone by court services officers
and police officers and how much the hours for court services
of ficers woul d change under HB 351

MR. METCALF offered his understanding that "the basic is 400
hours," but he said he could bring the exact nunbers to the next
heari ng.

9:28: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the committee heard that term nation
notices are sent to the council, but asked  whet her
adm nistrative |leave or other personnel actions are sent. He
said, "I'm unaware of why you would get to the |evel of where
you woul d need a suspension of a |license when the enployer puts
peopl e on adm nistrative | eave for those kinds of reasons.”

9:30:19 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 5, 2012



MR. METCALF responded by offering his understanding that when a
person is termnating, the departnent sends over an F4 form
which explains the reason for the termnation. He said in
addition to getting notice from the departnent, there can be
conplaints filed by the public about the conduct of the police
officer or APSE could read a story about the conduct of the
police officer or the police officer could report himherself.

[HB 351 was hel d over. ]

CONFI RVATI ON HEARINE(S) :  ALASKA PUBLI C CFFI CES COW SSI ON

9:32:24 AM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business was
the confirmation hearing for the nomnee to the Alaska Public
O fices Comm ssion.

9:32: 31 AM

VANCE SANDERS, Appointee, Alaska Public Ofices Conmm ssion,
testified as appointee to the Alaska Public Ofices Conmm ssion
(APQC) . He said he thinks serving on the comm ssion would be
interesting and rewarding work. He said his work as an attorney
with Al aska Legal Services and on its board has shown him that
Alaska is an amazing place culturally, economically, and
socially, and he said "it kind of all bubbles up to APCC at sone
poi nt." He expressed appreciation to the commttee for
consi dering his appoi ntnent.

9:34: 41 AM

MR. SANDERS, in response to Representative Petersen, said he has
never run for political office, but has worked on political
canpaigns in North Carolina.

9:35: 56 AM

MR. SANDERS, in response to Representative Johansen, said the
role of APOC is as a watchdog for |obbyists and candi dates, as
wel |l as the consuner arm for the political process in the state.
He said his private practice was as nedi ator, and as a nenber of
the commssion he plans to apply the standards equally to
everyone who is reviewed by APQCC In response to another
guestion, he said currently he has no intention of trying for a
j usti ceship.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 5, 2012



9:38:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nmde a statenent in support of M.
Sanders.

9:39:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to advance the confirmation of
Vance  Sanders, appointee to the Alaska Public Ofices
Commi ssion, to the joint session for consideration. There being
no objection, the confirmati on was advanced.

9:39:48 AM
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

SCR 17-G RL SCOUTS 100TH ANNI VERSARY

9:40: 44 AM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business was
CS FOR SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 17(STA), Celebrating the
100t h anniversary of the Grl Scouts of the United States of
America and proclaimng 2012 as the Year of the Grl.

9:40: 56 AM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, Alaska State Legislature, as sponsor,
i ntroduced SCR 17.

9:41: 29 AM

KATYA WASSILLIE, Intern, Senator Bettye Davis, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented SCR 17 on behalf of Senator Davis,
sponsor. She stated that The Grl Scouts of Anerica was founded
by Juliet Gordon Lowe in 1912 and currently has 2.3 mllion girl

menbers and 890,000 adult volunteer nenbers. She noted there
are 50 mllion Grl Scout alumi in the US. She naned the
followng skills learned by Grl Scouts: a strong sense of
self, positive values, practical and healthful life skills, a
drive for facing and overcom ng challenges, and the ability to
think critically and examne different viewpoints in a
si tuation. These devel opnents are carried over to nany other
aspects of life. She related that 10 out of 17 wonen in the

US  Senate, 45 out of 75 wonen in the US.  House of
Representatives, and 53 percent of all fenmale business owners
were once Grl Scouts. She said SCR 17 recognizes the positive

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 5, 2012



impact that The Grl Scouts of Anerica has nmde on society
t hroughout the past 100 years and conmenorates the organization
by declaring 2012 to be "the Year of the Grl".

9:43: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG related that his nother and his wfe
were both Grl Scouts, and he stated his support of the proposed
resol ution.

9:43: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON related that his wife is the service
manager for the Southern Kenai Peninsula Grl Scouts of Anerica,
and he indicated [he and his wife] have been involved with the
organi zation for over 30 years. He expressed appreciation of
the proposed concurrent resolution and he welconed the
opportunity to look for further ways to honor the Grl Scouts
for the services they performfor Al aska.

9:44: 22 AM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER spoke of "information that is floating around
on the Internet"” regarding a connection between the Grl Scouts
of Anerica and Pl anned Parenthood. He asked the sponsor if she
would i ke to make a statenent in response.

SENATOR DAVIS said she is not aware of a connection between the
Grl Scouts and Pl anned Parenthood, and said the issue is not a
part of the proposed |egislation; therefore, she said she does
not have a response to Vice Chair Keller's statenent.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER said he wants to look into the matter further,
which is part of the reason that he will not yet entertain a
nmotion to nove the bill out of commttee.

SENATOR DAVIS requested that Vice Chair Keller give her the
information to which he referred, because she is not famliar
with it. She further stated that that concern should have been
shared with her prior to her com ng before the commttee for the
heari ng on SCR 17.

9:46: 00 AM
REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he thinks the Grl Scouts of

Arerica has a great history and is a good organization. He
commented that he recently saw many Grl Scouts in the halls of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 5, 2012



the capitol delivering cookies. He stated his support of SCR
17.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER announced that SCR 17 was held over.

SB  53-COWM SSI ON ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN

9:46: 50 AM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER announced that the final order of business was
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 53(FIN), "An Act reestablishing the
Al aska Comm ssion on the Status of Wnen; and relating to the
pur pose and powers of the Al aska Human Rel ati ons Conmi ssion.”

9:46: 54 AM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S, Al aska State Legislature, introduced SB 53
as sponsor.

9:47: 36 AM

CELESTE HODGE, Staff, Senator Bettye Davis, Alaska State
Legislature, presented SB 53 on behalf of Senator Davis,
sponsor. In reference to her nore in-depth presentation of SB
53 given to the House State Affairs Standing Commttee [on
4/ 3/ 12], MVs. Hodge sunmmarized that staggering statistics
regarding the high rate of fermale victins of sexual assault and
donestic violence in Al aska support the need to reestablish the
Al aska Wonren' s Conmi ssi on.

9:48: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasi zed his support of SB 53.

9:48: 53 AM

ARLI SS STURGULEWBKI noted that she served in the Al aska State
Legislature just shortly after the original legislation was
passed in 1978, and was there for its reactivation. She said
she was sorry to see the bill [sunset]. She stated that there
are real issues in foster child care and in the nunber of high
school students that are dropping out. She said there is a

strong econonic divide between rural and urban Al aska, and she
opined there is a real need for a conm ssion that can do speci al
studies, consider nmmjor issues, and distribute information to
peopl e. She asked the commttee to support the proposed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 5, 2012



| egi sl ation, and she enphasized the need for funding so that
peopl e can do outreach throughout the state.

9:51:47 AM

BARBARA BELKNAP, Vision 2020, said she was present as one of two
del egates to Vision 2020, which is a Drexel University College
of Medicine program seeking to achieve equality for wonen by
2020 in the follow ng specific areas: to increase the nunber of
wonen in senior |eadership positions in Anmerican life; to
achieve pay equity; to educate enployers about the value of
policies and practices that enable nmen and wonen to share fairly
their famly responsibilities; to educate new generations of
girls and boys to respect their differences; and to nobilize
wonmen to vote.

MS. BELKNAP said she renenbers that a couple nonths after the
Al aska Commri ssion on the Status of Wnen shut its doors during
the admnistration of former governor Walter J. Hickel, wonen
from around the state gathered during a conference at Centennial
Hal | and stayed afterwards to discuss the governor's deci sion.
From that neeting cane two ideas: a web site that connects
wonen across the state, called the Al aska Wnen's Network (AW),
and a witers' journal for Al aska Wnen, called Al aska Wnen
Speak. She said she was one of the co-founders for the network,
as well as its president for nany years, and she is a
contributor to the journal. She said that while both were good
vehi cl es for comunicating across the vast state, they could not
replace an official wonmen's conmmssion with staff and resources.
She said AW has nmany resources, but does not generate new
resources for the wonen of Alaska. She said wonen have found a
way to "make it work"” until someone in a position of power could
bring the comm ssi on back.

M5. BELKNAP said Governor Sean Parnell has nade reducing
vi ol ence against wonmen one of his top priorities. She said the
Al aska Conmission on the Status of Wnen printed a handbook
regarding crimnal |aw and violence against wonen, which also
covered adoption, nane changes, and other legal matters that
m ght surface for a wonman in Al aska. She nentioned another
report by the former conmission that was a statew de study
show ng why girls dropped out of school, which she said is still
a tinely issue. Ms. Belknap said in addition to updating old
studies, the commission could |look at the wage gap between nen
and wonen in Al aska. She said even though it is against federal
law to pay a woman |less than a mn for the sane job,
discrimnation occurs in Alaska and inpacts the wonen, their

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 5, 2012



famlies, their communities, and the state. She said the Juneau
Economi ¢ Devel opnent Council's 2011 report on Juneau and
Sout heast economc indicators related the wage disparity in
every civilian job and education level. The report stated that
nationally nen earned 29 percent nore than their female
counterparts in 2009. In Al aska, nen earned 37 percent nore for
full-time, year-round enploynent. In Juneau, where one would
expect wage parity, she said, nen earned 42 percent nore than
their female counterparts. She related that in 1946,
Representative Minoz' grandnother, Thelnma Engstrom introduced
legislation in the Alaska Territorial Legislature for pay equity
bet ween nmen and wonen. Ms. Bel knap said, "That was 66 years
ago, and we aren't there.”

9: 56: 06 AM

MS. BELKNAP expressed the following as facts: far too many
wonen get paid less than nmen for the sane jobs, which is
illegal, wunfair, and [adversely] inpacts the econony; Al aska

| eads the country in violence of nen against wonen; and because
the cost of living in Alaska is high, wonen with |ow i ncones can
get stuck in dangerous rel ationships, because they cannot afford
to take care of thenselves and their children. M. Bel knap said
pay equity and prevention of violence against wonen are two of
her interests, and SB 53 enconpasses a w de range of wonen's
issues that need to be addressed. She said there are
approximately 200 state and city wonen's comm ssions in the U S
She said she is struck by the volunteer work wonen do in the
state to nmake Alaska a better place. She stated that the
governor and the legislature can send all Al askans the nessage
that the wonmen are valued for the contributions they nake in
Al aska. She wurged the conmttee to support SB 53. She
concluded, "No non-profit can do the caliber of work an official
wonen's comm ssion can do if it is fully funded, nonpartisan,
and supported by the governor and the |egislature.”

9:58: 03 AM

CAREN ROBI NSON, Lobbyist, Al aska Wnen's Lobby (AW), testified
in support of SB 53. She stated that a wonmen's conm ssion could
provide relevant materials to policy mnmekers in both the
executive and legislative branches of governnent geared toward
improving the lives of wonen. Furthernore, a comm ssion could
provide a forum for wonen across the state to exchange ideas and
strategies for inproving their |ives. She listed the follow ng
that a wonen's comm ssion could address going forward: i ssues
that would bring wonen voters to the polls and involve them in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 5, 2012



the political process; jobs in which young wonen, ages 16-20,
woul d be i nterested and educat i on and skill-building
opportunities for those wonen; pay equity between nen and wonen;
the reduction of barriers to wonen's access to health care; and
the economic status of older wonen. She said AW would
appreciate the commttee's noving forward SB 53.

[ SB 53 was hel d over.]

10: 00: 20 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting was adjourned at 10:00
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- April 5, 2012



